
1 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  
Board of Education 

"Building a Bright Future for All Learners" 
 

Regular Meeting 
May 15, 2024 
6:00 p.m. Closed Session 
7:00 p.m. Open Session 

Galt City Hall Chamber 
380 Civic Drive, Galt, CA 95632 

 
To join the webinar remotely: 

https://galt-k12-ca.zoom.us/j/89910211437 
Or One tap mobile : 

    +16699006833,,89910211437# US (San Jose) 
    +16694449171,,89910211437# US 

Webinar ID: 899 1021 1437 
Or Telephone:   
408-638-0968 

 

AGENDA 
Anyone may comment publicly on any item within the Board's subject matter jurisdiction to the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Board 
of Education. However, the Board may not take action on any item not on this Board meeting agenda except as authorized by Government Code 
section 54954.2. 

 Complete a public comment form indicating the item you want to address and give it to the board meeting assistant. 
 Individual speakers shall be allowed three minutes to address the Board on each agenda or non-agenda item.  
 Public comments emailed to superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 24 hours before the board meeting will be posted on the GJUESD website with 

the agenda. Email public comment is limited to 450 words. 
 The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes. With Board consent, the president may increase or decrease 

the time allowed for public presentation, depending on the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard.  
 
Board of Education Meetings are recorded. 

 
A. 6:00 p.m. – Closed Session Location: Galt City Hall Conference Room 
   
B. Announce items to be discussed in Closed Session, Adjourn to Closed Session  
    
 1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 

Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 
 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Unrepresented Employees 

   
 2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE §54957 
   
C. Adjourn Closed Session, Call Meeting to Order, Flag Salute, Announce Action Taken in Closed 

Session 
   
D. Presentations  
 1. McCaffrey Middle School Environmental Club 
  



2 
 

E. Board Meeting Protocol 
  
F. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

Public comment is limited to three minutes or less, pending Board President's approval. 
  
G. Communication  
 1. Sacramento County Office of Education: 2023-2024 Second Period Interim 

Report 
 

   
H. Reports  
 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
  
 LCAP GOAL 1 

Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in various learning environments. 
 1. Proposition 28 – Arts and Music in Schools Funding  
   
 LCAP GOAL 2 

Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

 1. School Resource Officer Program  
 2. Facility Master Planning  
    
 OTHER REPORTS  
 1. City And Schools Together (CAST) 
 2. School Calendars 
    
I. Routine Matters/New Business  
 232.498 Consent Calendar  
  a. Approval of the Agenda 

At a regular meeting, the Board may act upon an item of business not appearing on the posted 
agenda if, first, the Board publicly identifies the item, and second, one or more of the 
following occurs: 
1) The Board, by a majority vote of the entire Board, decides that an emergency (as defined 

in Government Code section 54956.5) exists or 
2) Upon a decision by a two-thirds vote of the Board, or if less than two-thirds of the Board 

members are present, a unanimous vote of those present, the Board decides that there is 
a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of 
the District after the agenda was posted; or  

3) The item was posted on the agenda of a prior meeting of the Board occurring not more 
than five calendar days before the date of this meeting, and at the preceding meeting, 
the item was continued to this meeting. 

MOTION 

     
  b. Minutes  
    April 17, 2024 Regular Board Meeting  
     
  c. Payment of Warrants 

 Vendor Warrants: 24478096-24478162; 24479540-24479612; 
24481029-24481078; 24482058; 24482719-24482766;  

 Payroll Warrants: 04/30/24; 05/10/24 

 

     
  d. Personnel  
    Resignations/Retirements 

 Leave of Absence Requests 
 New Hires/Reclassifications 

 



3 
 

     
  e. Donations  
     
  f. Procare Therapy Non-Public, Non-Sectarian School/Agency Services 

Contract 
 

     
  g. Disposal of Surplus Property – Cafeteria Tables  
     
  h. Disposal of Surplus Property – John Deere Tractor Mowers  
     
 232.499 Consent Calendar (Continued) – Items Removed for Later Consideration MOTION 
    
 232.500 Board Consideration of Approval of Hancock Park & DeLong School 

Facility Consulting Proposal for School Facilities Grant and Consulting 
Services 

MOTION 

    
 232.501 Board Consideration of Approval of School Facilities Program Close-

out Performance Audit for Valley Oaks Elementary School 
MOTION 

    
 232.502 Board Consideration of Approval of School Facilities Program 

Close-out Performance Audit for River Oaks Elementary School 
MOTION 

    
 232.503 Board Consideration of Approval of 19six Architects' Proposal for 

Professional Architectural and Engineering Services for New Classroom 
Building at Valley Oaks Elementary School 

MOTION 

    
 232.504 GJUESD Sunshine Proposal for the Fiscal Year 2024-25 with California 

School Employees Association (CSEA) - Public Notice  
PUBLIC NOTICE 

    
 232.505 GJUESD Sunshine Proposal for the Fiscal Year 2024-25 with Galt 

Elementary Faculty Association (GEFA) - Public Notice  
PUBLIC NOTICE 

    
 232.506 Galt Elementary Faculty Association (GEFA) Notice for the Fiscal Year 

2024-25 with the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

    
 232.507 First Reading of the following Board Policies: 

1. BP 3516 Emergency and Disaster Preparedness Plan 
2. BP 4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action 
3. BP 4140/4240/4340 Bargaining Units 
4. BP 4157/4257/4357 Employee Safety 
5. BP 4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action 
6. BB 9320 Meetings and Notices 
7. BB 9323.2 Actions by the Board 
8. BP 5144 Discipline 
9. BP 6141.2 Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs 
10. BP 6175 Migrant Education 
11. BP 3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 
12. BP 3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
13. BP 3553 Free and Reduced Price Meals 

FIRST READING 



4 
 

11. BP 3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 
12. BP 3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
13. BP 3553 Free and Reduced Price Meals 
14. BP 3555 Nutrition Program Compliance 
15. BP 5126 Awards for Achievement 
16. BP 4111/4211/4311 Recruitment and Selection 

    
J. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

Public comment is limited to three minutes or less, pending Board President's approval.  
 

   
K. Pending Agenda Items  
    
L. Adjournment  
    
    

The next regular meeting of the GJUESD Board of Education is June 18, 2024 
    

Board agenda materials are available for review at the address below. Individuals who require disability-related 
accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, to participate in the Board meeting should 

contact the Superintendent or designee in writing. 
 

Lois Yount, District Superintendent 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 
superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 

 
 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:    April 17, 2024 Agenda Item:  Closed Session 
 

Presenter:         Lois Yount Action Item:  
 Information Item: XX 
  

 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 
Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 

 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Non-Represented Employees 

  
  
2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE §54957 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:    May 15, 2024 Agenda Item: Presentation 
 

Presenter:         Lois Yount Action Item:  
 Information Item: XX 

 
 

1. McCaffrey Middle School Environmental Club 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Revised December 21, 2023
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

BOARD MEETING PROTOCOL

SESSION INTRODUCTION
1. The meeting is being recorded.
2. The meeting is open to the public.
3. The meeting is being broadcast live through Zoom teleconference.

PUBLIC COMMENT
1. Public comments are three minutes per agenda item.
2. The Board shall limit the total time for public comment for each agenda item to 20 

minutes.
3. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease the time allowed for 

public comment.
4. To make a public comment in person, complete a public comment form indicating the 

item you would like to address and give it to the board meeting assistant.

EMAIL PUBLIC COMMENT
1. Public comments emailed to superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 24 hours before the board 

meeting will be posted to the GJUESD website with the agenda.
2. Email public comment is limited to 450 words.

BOARD VOTE AND CONNECTIVITY
1. Each motion will be followed by a roll call vote for action items.
2. Should a board member attend the meeting remotely and lose connectivity by 

teleconference or phone, the meeting will be delayed five minutes.

REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS SHALL BE ADJOURNED BY 10:30 P.M.



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:    May 15, 2024 Agenda Item:  Communication 
 

Presenter:         Lois Yount Action Item:  
 Information Item: XX 
  

 

1.  Sacramento County Office of Education: 2023-2024 Second Period Interim Report 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:    May 15, 2024 Agenda Item: Reports 
 

Presenter:         Lois Yount Action Item:  
 Information Item: XX 

 
 

LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (LCAP) 
 
 
LCAP GOAL 1 
Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in various learning environments. 
1. Proposition 28 – Arts and Music in Schools Funding  
  
  
LCAP GOAL 2 
Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive environments. 
1. School Resource Officer Program  
2. Facility Master Planning  
   
   
OTHER REPORTS  
1. City And Schools Together (CAST) 
2. School Calendars 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: May 15, 2024 
 

 
LCAP 

 

 
 
 
Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)  
 

 
 
 
 
 

The Galt Joint Union Elementary School District (GJUESD) has gathered feedback from multiple 
educational partners and the community in developing a strategic three-year plan to provide a well-
rounded education that centers on the whole child and supports for all staff. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  



Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)
Draft Goals andActions

May 2024

The Galt Joint Union Elementary School District (GJUESD) has gathered feedback from
multiple educational partners and the community in developing a strategic three year plan
to provide awell rounded education that centers on thewhole child and support for all sta .

GJUESD's two LCAP goals serve to focus our e orts to provide for the social, emotional and
academic aspects of learning for children and adults in our community.

1. Engaging all learnerswith a focus on academic rigor using inclusive practices in a
variety of learning environments

Actions:
● Provide direct services to high needs families through a comprehensive School

Readiness Program: parent education and a home visitation program.
● Attract and retain TK-8 certi icated staf ing for regular and special education

classrooms. Provide specialized support with an emphasis on buildingmore inclusive
environments by providing each school with a Resource Specialist teacher.
Certi icated sta will provide Designated and Integrated English Language
Development (ELD) to support English pro iciency for English Learners (ELs) and
Long TermEnglish Learners (LTELs).

● All intern teachers and teachers in the Induction Programwill be providedwith a
mentor to support professional growth and retain a clear credential.

● School administration staf ing to prioritize high quality instructional programs at the
site and district level.

● Further reduce TK-3 class size to 20:1 tomore e ectively implement services for high
needs learners through increased time for personalized instruction and support for
individual growth in reading,mathematics and ELD.

● Support the implementation of an AVID program at themiddle school targeting high
needs students with a focus on college and career pathways and expand AVID into
the elementary schools for 6th grade.

● Provide Instructional Assistant (IA) support for high needs students in early reading.
Additional personalized bilingual IA support for English Learners in grades TK-3,
newcomers and Long TermEnglish Learners in grades 4th-8th. Increase access and
inclusion for learners with special education services through IA support during
mainstreaming; increasing early intervention e orts at PreK.

● Continue to develop the PreK-8 Dual Language Immersion (DLI) program and provide
professional development for bilingual teachers and IAs serving the program.



● Hold academic conferences andMTSSmeetings with grade levels and learner
support teams to analyze and review student data and identify student needs.

● All sta participate in professional learningwith a focus on student growth,
well-being and safety. Increase capacity building related to curriculum, instruction
(to include designated and integrated ELD), assessment, and data analysis. Continued
support will be providedwith the implementation of social emotional learning.
Continuewith ELD professional learning that focuses on sites that have a higher
concentration of ELs and LTELs.

● Bright Future Home Learning Academy provides in-person and online learning for
students through enrichment opportunities and a learning hub for academic
support. Alternative Program atMcCa reyMiddle provides students with a smaller
class size to support academic and social-emotional needs.

● Ensure that all students have access tomaterial and curriculum aligned to California
content standards and that all general education and special education teachers have
the needed instructional resources.

● All students will have access to online learning courseware including English
Learners, low income, homeless and foster youth.

● Provide 1-to-1 studentmobile devices and classroom technology to strengthen youth
voice and choice in blended learning environments and innovation opportunities
and ensure availability of wi i for students with little or no internet access at home.

● Increase parent engagement and participation in their children's education and
improve home-school communication.

● Provide transportation services to increase attendance rates and access to after
school programs and summer learning opportunities.

● Provide college and career readiness lessons in grades 5-8 through the development
of an agriculture program.

● Parents of unduplicated students will be represented at all stakeholdermeetings
(DAC, ELAC, DELAC, listening circles, surveys, and teacher/parent talks) to promote
parent participation in programs for unduplicated students.

● At least ive opportunities for stakeholder participation and involvement in the
district's LCAP process to provide feedbackwill be provided by the district in both
English and Spanish (DAC, DELAC, SpEd PAC).

2. Promoting PreK-8whole learner development through social and emotional
learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive environments.

Actions
● Sustain a SocialWorker or School Counselor in every school to providemental health

services, social emotional, behavior and academic support within theMTSS
framework. Awellness center at themiddle school will support students who have
individual needs.



● Student safety andwell-beingwill be supported by the School Resource Of icer (SRO)
program.

● Expanded Learning and Enrichment Programs , will support learners at all school
sites and o er a variety of expanded learning and culturally relevant enrichment
opportunities (sports, music, art, STEAM, environmental education, etc.) during and
after the school day. District-wide enrichment opportunities will be coordinated by
The Environmental Outdoor Education Coordinator and the Visual and Performing
Arts District Coordinator.

● Ensure all facilities are safe, well-maintained and clean.
● All schools will implement the Second Step SEL curriculumwith students in PreK-8

and participate in identifying/building on students' talents and strengths.



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: May 15, 2024 
 

 
LCAP GOAL 1 

 

 
 
 
LCAP GOAL 1 
Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in a variety of learning 
environments. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. Proposition 28 – Arts and Music in Schools Funding 
Lois Yount, Superintendent, and Alejandra Garibay, Chief Business Official 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  















GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: May 15, 2024

LCAP GOAL 2

LCAP GOAL 2 
Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

1. School Resource Officer Program
Lois Yount, Superintendent 

Collectively, the SRO positions serve the GJUESD and Galt Joint Union High School District (GJUHSD) 
to promote safety in the learning environment. Brian Kalinowski, Police Chief, will provide a report. 

2. Facility Master Planning
Lois Yount, Superintendent

On August 16, 2023, the Board of Trustees approved a contract with 19six Architects for facility 
master planning services. For the past eight months, the team from 19six has thoroughly 
examined all campus facilities and met with the Districts’ facility steering committee to develop
comprehensive facility master planning documents to serve the District in the coming years.  

As funding becomes available to upgrade and improve school facilities, these planning 
documents will be extremely useful to determine priorities.  

The steering committee consisted of staff and/or parents representing each school campus. 
School administrators also received feedback from their parents and staff through leadership 
meetings and various parent meetings.



























•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

















•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 





























V
E
R
N

O
N
 

E
. 
G

R
E
E
R
 

E
L
E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

















































L
A

K
E
 
C
A

N
Y
O

N
 

E
L
E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y













































M
A

R
E
N

G
O

 

R
A

N
C

H
 

E
L
E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y













































R
IV

E
R
 
O

A
K
S
 

E
L
E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y
 

S
C

H
O

O
L













































V
A

L
L
E
Y
 
O

A
K
S
  

E
L
E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y













































F
A

IR
S
IT

E
 

E
L
E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y
 
&
 

E
A

R
L
Y
 
L
E
A

R
N

IN
G
 

C
E
N

T
E
R













































R
O

B
E
R
T
 
L
 

M
C

C
A

F
F
R
E
Y
 

M
ID

D
L
E

























33

3
3

D

D







































NO
TE

: D
es

cri
be

d H
VA

C 
Re

pla
ce

me
nt 

co
st 

inc
lud

es
 up

da
tes

 to
 he

ati
ng

 an
d c

oo
lin

g s
ys

tem
s

wi
th 

po
we

r a
nd

 st
ru

ctu
ra

l c
on

sid
er

ati
on

s, 
re

qu
irin

g t
his

 pr
oje

ct 
to 

be
 ap

pr
ov

ed
 by

 th
e D

ivi
sio

n
of 

the
 S

tat
e A

rch
ite

ct.
 If 

it i
s d

ete
rm

ine
d t

ha
t s

tru
ctu

ra
l c

ha
ng

es
 ar

en
’t r

eq
uir

ed
, th

e e
sti

ma
ted

pr
oje

ct 
co

st 
wi

ll d
iffe

r.



























 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: May 15, 2024 
 

 
OTHER REPORTS 

 

 
 
 
OTHER REPORTS 
 

1. City And Schools Together (CAST) 
Lois Yount, Superintendent 

  
  
2. School Calendars 

School Principals/Assistant Principals 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CASTMeeting Agenda

Location: Galt Joint Union Elementary School District
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632

Date/Time: May 13, 2024 at 5:30 PM

Members: GJUESD City of Galt GJUHSD
Lois Yount, Superintendent Chris Erias, City Manager Lisa Pettis, Retiring Superintendent 

and Anna Trunnell, Superintendent
Casey Raboy, Board Member Shawn Farmer, Council Member Terry Parker, Board Clerk
Traci Skinner, Board President Kevin Papineau, Council Member Dennis Richardson, Board Member

Welcome!
I. Review of CAST Purpose and Agenda Overview

II. Standing Agenda Items
School and City Safety Updates
School Resource Officers (SRO)

III. Galt Joint Union Elementary School District
District Updates
Potential GO Bond: public outreach and education
Student Enrollment and Staffing

IV. Galt Joint Union High School District
End of Year Activities
Estrellita High School Program Updates
Superintendent Transition

V. City of Galt
City Updates

VI. 2024-25 Quarterly Meetings
Monday, August 12, 2024 – City Hall 
Tuesday, November 12, 2024 – Galt Joint Union Elementary School District
Tuesday, February 11, 2025 – Galt Joint Union High School District
Monday, May 12, 2025 – City Hall

*City and Schools Together (CAST) is a collaborative effort among leaders of the City of Galt, Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, 
and the Galt Joint Union High School District, united to ensure a positive future for all Galt area youth and families through strategic 
planning, open communication, resource sharing and coordination of events and activities.”

~ CAST MISSION STATEMENT



S
U
N

M
O
N

T
U
E

W
E
D

T
H
U

F
R
I

S
A
T

1

2
3

4
5

6
7

L
A
S
T

D
A
Y

O
F

S
C
H
O
O
L

F
O
R

T
K

8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15

16
17

18
19

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

2
8

2
9

UNE
2
0
2
4

F
A
IR

S
IT

E
E
L
E
M

E
N
T
A
R
Y

A
N
D

E
A
R
L
Y

L
E
A
R
N
IN

G
C
E
N
T
E
R

9
0
2

C
A
R
O
L
IN

E
S
T
.

G
A
L
T
,
C
A

9
5
6
3
2

(2
0
9
)
7
4
5
-2

5
0
6

L
A
U
R
A

M
A
R
Q
U
E
Z

P
R
IN

C
IP

A
L





Su
n

M
on

Tu
e

W
ed

Th
u

Fr
i

Sa
t

1

2
3 Sp

ee
ch

/ R
SP

 P
ar

ty
 

3r
d 

G
ra

de
 A

w
ar

ds
1:

45
 

4
5

6
A

w
ar

ds
 A

ss
em

bl
y 

 
8:

05
  4

th
 G

ra
de

8:
50

 5
th

 G
ra

de
 

3r
d 

G
ra

de
 to

 
T

he
 F

is
he

ry
 

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15

16
17

18
19 Ju

ne
te

en
th

 N
at

io
na

l 
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 D

ay
 

20
21

22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29

30

La
ke

 C
an

yo
n 

Bo
ar

d 
Ca

le
nd

ar
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

4

25
26

27
28

18
19 Ju

ne
te

en
th

 N
at

io
na

l 
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 D

ay
 

20
21

6t
h 

G
ra

de
 

A
w

ar
ds

/P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

10
:3

0

L
A

ST
 D

A
Y

 O
F 

SC
H

O
O

L
 

1:
00

 P
M

   
-D

is
m

is
sa

l 

CCO
LO

RR
 R

U
NN

  
8:

00
-1

1:
00

 

1:
15

-2
:3

0

A
w

ar
ds

 A
ss

em
bl

y 
  

8:
15

  2
nd

 G
ra

de
10

:0
0 

 1
st

 G
ra

de
 

4t
h 

G
ra

de
 B

B
Q

 1
1:

00
  

6t
h 

G
ra

de
 to

 G
al

t P
oo

l
6t

h 
G

ra
de

 D
an

ce
 1

:0
0



Su
n

M
on

Tu
e

W
ed

Th
u

Fr
i

Sa
t

1

2
3

4
5

6
7

8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29

30

Ju
ne

 2
02

4
M

cC
af

fr
ey

 M
id

dl
e 

Sc
ho

ol

8t
h-

gr
ad

e 
Fi

el
d 

Tr
ip

C
ou

nt
ry

 C
lu

b 
La

ne
s

Pr
om

ot
io

n 
Pr

ac
tic

e

8t
h-

G
ra

de
 

B
ul

ld
og

 F
ar

ew
el

l

Pr
om

ot
io

n 
Pr

ac
tic

e
La

st
 D

ay
 o

f S
ch

oo
l

Pr
om

ot
io

n 
7t

h-
G

ra
de

 F
ie

ld
 D

ay
M

in
im

um
 D

ay

B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g 
@

 
7p

m



SU
N

 
M

O
N

 
T

U
E

 
W

E
D

 
T

H
U

 
F

R
I 

SA
T

 

 
 

 
 

   

 
1

 

2
 

3
  

S
a

fe
ty

  
P

a
tr

o
l 

F
ie

ld
 

T
ri

p
 t

o
 

IM
A

X
 

4
  

L
a

s
t 

d
a

y
 f

o
r 

IA
/B

IA
  

5
  

6
T

H
 G

R
A

D
E

 
A

W
A

R
D

S
 

B
R

E
A

K
F

A
S

T
 

8
:3

0
-1

0
A

M
 

6
  

K
in

d
e

r 
&

 
1

s
t 

g
ra

d
e

 
c

e
le

b
ra

ti
o

n

7
  

L
a

s
t 

D
a

y
 f

o
r 

S
P

E
D

 I
A

/
K

in
d

e
r 

IA
  

8
 

9
 

1
0

 
1

1
 

1
2

 
1

3
 

1
4

 
1

5
 

1
7

 
1

7
 

 
L

a
s

t 
D

a
y

 f
o

r 
S

e
c

 I
 &

 I
I,

 
H

e
a

lt
h

, 
B

F
L

C
 t

e
c

h
, 

V
P

 

1
8

 
1

9
 

 
B

O
A

R
D

  
M

E
E

T
IN

G
 

2
0

 
2

1
 

 
L

a
s

t 
D

a
y

 f
o

r 
 

P
ri

n
c

ip
a

l 

2
2

 

2
3

 
2

4
 

2
5

 
2

6
 

2
7

 
2

8
 

2
9

 

Ju
ne

 2
02

4 
B

o
a

rd
 C

a
le

n
d

a
r–

 W
h

at
’s

 h
a

p
p

e
n

in
g

 t
h

is
 m

o
n

th
 a

t 
M

a
re

n
g

o
 R

a
n

ch
?

 

Im
po

rta
nt

  
Re

m
in

de
rs

 
 

06
/0

4 
Fi

el
d 

D
ay

  
fo

r a
ll 

gr
ad

es
 

 
06

/0
6 

Aw
ar

ds
 A

ss
em

bl
ie

s 
K

/1
 8

:1
5-

9:
00

 
2/

3 
9:

15
-1

0:
00

 
4/

5 
10

:1
5-

11
:0

0 
 

06
/0

7 
 

La
st 

D
ay

 o
f S

ch
oo

l  
1p

m
 D

is
m

is
sa

l 
  

06
/1

7 
 

Su
m

m
er

 S
ch

oo
l  

be
gi

ns
 



Su
n 

M
on

 
Tu

e 
W

ed
 

Th
u 

Fr
i 

Sa
t 

 
 

 
  

1 

2 
3  

4 
   

   
  

 5t
h 

G
ra

de
 B

BQ
 1

0a
m

  
 

2n
d 

G
ra

de
 F

ie
ld

 D
ay

 
10

:0
0-

11
:3

0a
m

 

5 
  T

al
en

t S
ho

w
 8

:1
5 

 
6t

h 
G

ra
de

  G
re

ek
 O

ly
m

pi
cs

 
 

6t
h 

 G
ra

de
 B

re
ak

fa
st 

Sl
id

es
 &

 A
w

ar
ds

 

6 
 

6t
h 

G
ra

de
 to

 th
e 

Po
ol

 
  

6t
h 

G
ra

de
 B

BQ
 

7 
   

K
in

de
r P

ro
m

ot
io

ns
 

M
ul

lin
s –
9a

m
 

M
ar

gi
ot

t-1
0a

m
 

 
La

st
 D

ay
 o

f S
ch

oo
l  

1:
00

 p
m

 D
is

m
is

sa
l 

8 

9 
10

 
11

 
12

 
13

 
14

 
15

 

16
 

 
17

 
18

 
19

 
20

 
21

 
  

22
 

23
 

24
 

25
 

26
 

27
 

28
 

29
 

R
 O

k
 E

nt
 

   
   

 J
 2

02
4 



Va
lle
yO
ak
sE
lem

en
tar
y
Ju
ne

Ju
ne
2200
2244

M
on
da
y

Tu
es
da
y

W
ed
ne
sd
ay

Th
ur
sd
ay

Fr
id
ay

3.
3r
d
Tr
i.
A
w
ar
d
s

A
ss
em

b
lie
s

6t
h
G
ra
d
e
vs
.S
ta
ff

K
ic
kb

al
lG

am
e

4.
3r
d
Tr
iA

w
ar
d
s

A
ss
em

b
lie
s

5.
3r
d
Tr
iA

w
ar
d
s

A
ss
em

b
lie
s

Po
p
si
cl
es

fr
o
m

th
e

p
ri
n
ci
p
al

6.
3r
d
Tr
iA

w
ar
d
s

A
ss
em

b
lie
s

7. 3r
d
Tr
iA

w
ar
d
s
A
ss
em

b
lie
s

fo
r
6t
h
gr
ad

e

M
in
im

u
m

D
ay

(1
:0
0p

m
)

La
st
D
ay

o
f
Sc
h
o
o
l!

10
.

11
.

12
.

13
.

14
.

17
.

18
. 7p

m
G
JU
ES
D
B
o
ar
d

M
ee
ti
n
g

19
.

N
o
sc
h
o
o
l:

Ju
n
et
ee
n
th

H
o
lid

ay

20
.

21
.

24
.

25
.

26
.

27
.

28
.



1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax
Board Meeting Agenda Item Information

Meeting Date: May 15, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.498
Board Consideration of Approval of Consent 
Calendar

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX
Information Item:

a. Approval of the Agenda

b. Minutes
April 17, 2024 Regular Board Meeting

c. Payment of Warrants
Vendor Warrants: 24478096-24478162; 24479540-24479612; 24481029-24481078; 
24482058; 24482719-24482766; 
Payroll Warrants: 04/30/24; 05/10/24

d. Personnel
Resignations/Retirements
Leave of Absence Requests
New Hires/Reclassifications

e. Donations

f. Procare Therapy Non-Public, Non-Sectarian School/Agency Services Contract

g. Disposal of Surplus Property – Cafeteria Tables

h. Disposal of Surplus Property – John Deere Tractor Mowers

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



1 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  
Board of Education Minutes 

 
Regular Meeting 
April 17, 2024 

Galt City Hall Chamber 
380 Civic Drive, Galt, CA 95632 

 
Zoom Webinare ID: 

833 7739 3328 
  
Board Members Administrators Present 
Traci Skinner 
Casey Raboy 
Katherine Harper 
Annette Kunze 
Wesley Cagle 

Lois Yount 
Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano 

Kuljeet Nijjar 
Alejandra Garibay 

Jennifer Porter 
Leah Wheeler 

Joshua Saldate 
Tina Homdus 

Judi Hayes 
 

A. 6:00 pm – Closed Session Location: Galt City Hall Conference Room 
Present: Traci Skinner, Casey Raboy, Katherine Harper, Annette Kunze, Wesley Cagle, Lois Yount, 
Claudia Del-Toro Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 

   
B. Traci Skinner called the Closed Session to order at 7:03 pm to discuss the following items: 
    
 1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 

Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 
 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Unrepresented Employees 

   
 2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE §54957 
   
C. The Closed Session adjourned at 6:57 pm, and the Open session began at 7:00 pm, followed by the 

flag salute, which Valley Oaks Elementary music program students led.  
   
D. Presentations  
 1. Valley Oaks Elementary music program performed a song for the Board. 
   
 2. At this time, Joshua Saldate, Assistant Principal, announced that the McCaffrey Middle School 

Color Guard won the 2024 NCBA Champions and that Angela Romero, a student, was awarded the 
highest honor available at the competition. He thanked McCaffrey students and staff for their 
efforts. 

  
Traci Skinner, Board President, announced no action was taken during the closed session. 
  
E. Lois Yount shared the Board Meeting Protocol. 
  
F. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 



2 
 

  Curtiss Wright, Omar Anzalua, and Arianne Aguilera addressed the Board regarding Proposition 28, 
Arts and Music in Schools Funding, advocating for an additional music teacher. 

 Tammy Partridge provided a Galt Elementary Faculty Association (GEFA) update. 
  
G. Reports  
  
 LCAP GOAL 1 

Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in various learning environments. 
 1. Summer Programs 

Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director, reported the District will be offering multiple 
programs this summer, including: 

 Extended School Year/Summer School: June 17-July 12 (no school June 19 and July 4), 
8 am to 12 pm, Monday through Friday. 

 Galt Expanded Learning Program (GEL): June 14-July 24 (no school June 19 and July 4), 
7:30–4:30 pm, Monday through Friday 

 
Ms. Nijjar announced the summer coordinators and thanked them for their efforts. The 
Coordinators are: 

 Extended School Year: Gina Fuentes 
 Summer School: Gerardo Martinez 
 Galt Expanded Learning: Lori Jones 
 Food Services: Nich Svoboda 

   
 LCAP GOAL 2 

Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

 1. CalSCHLS Healthy Kids Survey Data 
Lois Yount reported that during February, students in grades 5-8 and staff and parents 
were invited to take the California School Climate, Health and Learning Survey 
(CalSCHLS). 
 
Ms. Yount shared key indicators of school climate district-wide and by school site. She 
highlighted staff reporting "strongly agree" increased from 2023 to 2024. She also 
said parent participation was very low. The administrators have since brainstormed 
ways to increase parent participation next year. 

 

    
 OTHER REPORTS  
 1. School Calendars 

School administrators shared an event from their May school calendar. 
   
 2. Williams Uniform Complaint Process (UCP) Quarter 3 Report 

Lois Yount reported no complaints for Quarter 3. 
    
H. Routine Matters/New Business  
 232.487 Lois Yount shared the donations. 

 
Kuljeet Nijjar informed the Board the Fairsite Elementary School Plan for 
Student Achievement (SPSA) is being amended to seek a waiver for school-wide 
program status. 
 

 



3 
 

Casey Raboy made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar, seconded by 
Wesley Cagle. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

  a. Approval of the Agenda Consent 
Calendar 

     
  b. Minutes  
    March 20, 2024 Regular Board Meeting  
     
  c. Payment of Warrants 

 Vendor Warrants: 24472653-24472713; 24473389-24473427; 
24474047-24474064; 24476723-24476814 

 Payroll Warrants: 04/10/24 

 

     
  d. Personnel  
   Resignations/Retirees 

 

Name Position Effective 
Date 

Site 

Bridgeman, Vanessa Psychologist 6/30/24 Valley Oaks 

Guillen Madera, 
Karla 

Instructional Assistant, Expanded 
Learning 

4/4/24 Lake Canyon 

Hurtado, Maria Bilingual Office Assistant 4/12/24 District Office 

Ipson, Annie Teacher 6/7/2024 Lake Canyon 

Lopez, Shalise Instructional Assistant, Special 
Education 

4/19/24 Vernon E. 
Greer 

Needham, Lisa Teacher 6/7/24 Fairsite 

Swain, Heather Teacher 6/7/2024 Lake Canyon 

 
Leave of Absence Requests 

Name Position Effective 
Date 

Site 

Azua, Mike Custodian 5/16/24 Marengo 
Ranch 

Grace, Kimberly Instructional Assistant 4/15/24 Valley Oaks 

Haught, Sarah Instructional Assistant, Expanded 
Learning 

3/12/24 Valley Oaks 

Raygoza-Montes, 
Neyda 

Instructional Assistant, Special 
Education 

8/16/23 Vernon E. 
Greer 

 
New Hires/Reclassifications/Status Changes 

 

Name Position Site 

Amrine, Caitlyn Classified Substitute N/A 

Anaya, Maria (status 
change) 

Secretary 1 Fairsite 

Contreras Arias, Stephanie Food & Nutrition Assistant 1 McCaffrey 
Middle 

Edwards, Hannah Short-Term Instructional Assistant Marengo Ranch 

Flores, John Custodian Valley Oaks 

 



4 
 

Gomez, Oralia Classified Substitute N/A 

Havens, Westin Classified Substitute N/A 

Jauregui, Alondra Short Term Instructional Assistant, Special 
Education 

Vernon E. Greer 

Meza, Miriam Classified Substitute N/A 

Pollan, Kayleena Classified Substitute N/A 
 

     
  e. Donations  
     
  f. Fairsite Elementary School Plan for Student Achievement Amendment   
     
  g. Tilly Therapy Non-Public, Non-Sectarian School/Agency Services Contract  
     
 232.488 Consent Calendar (Continued) – Items Removed for Later Consideration 

No items were removed from the consent calendar. 
CC Items 

Removed 

    
 232.489 Annette Kunze made a motion to approve TeamCIVX, LLC's proposal to Conduct 

Public Outreach on a Potential 2024 Bond Measure, seconded by Katherine 
Harper. The motion carried unanimously.  

TEAMCIVX 
Proposal 

    
 232.490 Traci Skinner made a motion to approve Resolution No. 16, Accepting Final 

Completion of Contract for the Valley Oaks Elementary School Classroom 
Building, S&B James Construction California, Inc., seconded by Casey Raboy. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

Res 16  
NOC VO 

    
 232.491 Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve the Job Description for Visual and 

Performing Arts District Coordinator, seconded by Katherine Harper. The 
motion carried unanimously. 

Job Desc 
VAPA 
Coord 

    
 232.492 Traci Skinner made a motion to approve the following Board Policies (BP) and 

Administrative Regulations (AR). [The Board pulled BP 1313 Civility], seconded 
by Annette Kunze. The motion carried unanimously. 

1. BP/AR 1250 Visitors/Outsiders 
2. BP 1313 Civility 
3. BP/AR 3515.2 Disruptions 
4. BP/AR 4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees 

Board 
Policy 

    
 232.493 Traci Skinner made a motion to approve the Superintendent's 

Recommendation Regarding Implementing Board Resolution No. 11 
(Adopted February 21, 2024), Reduction Or Discontinue Particular Kinds 
of Services (Certificated), seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
The services include 1.0 FTE certificated employee reduction by 6.00 
sections at Robert L. McCaffrey Middle School:  Christina Ceccarelli 1.0 
FTE. 

MOTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    



5 
 

 232.494 Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve the Superintendent's 
Recommendation Regarding Implementing Board Resolution No. 12 (Adopted 
February 21, 2024) Reduction In Particular Kinds of Services And Abolishment 
of (Classified) Positions Due To Lack Of Work Or Lack Of Funds (Classified) and  
Implementing Board Resolution No. 13 (Adopted February 21, 2024) Reduction 
In Particular Kinds of Service Due To Lack Of Work or Lack Of Funds (Classified), 
seconded by Annette Kunze. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The classified positions with incumbents in the position(s) who will be 
laid off or reduced in hours for the 2024-25 school year are below and 
shall be discontinued or reduced in hours to the following extent: 

CLASSIFICATIONS FTE 
Instructional Assistant  3.0 Position 
Instructional Assistant, Preschool 1.0 Position 
Bilingual Office Assistant (8.0 hours) 1 Position – Reduce to 4 Hours 

Bright Future Learning Center 
Technicians (8.0 hours) 

6 Positions – Reduce to 6 Hours 

TOTAL  11 
 

The District Superintendent or her designee is hereby authorized to give 
notice on behalf of the Board as required by Education Code section 
45117 to the below-named employees: 

Miriam Rodriguez 
Martinez 

Andraya Rocha Lucerito Ramirez 

James Reeve Annette Garcia  Charlene Keane 
Lori Ginni Vanessa Torres Tammy Dettman 
Rebecca Coker Jennifer Taylor  

 

MOTION 

    
 232.495 Casey Raboy made a motion to approve a Memorandum of Understanding 

Between the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District and the Galt 
Elementary Faculty Association Regarding Full-Day Kindergarten Early Release 
Days, seconded by Katherine Harper. The motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION 

    
 232.496 Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve a Memorandum of Understanding 

Between the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District and the Galt 
Elementary Faculty Association Regarding Combination Team Stipend For 
Middle School Core Teachers, seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

MOTION 

    
 232.497 Annette Kunze made a motion to approve the Memorandum of Understanding 

Between the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District And the Galt 
Elementary Faculty Association Regarding the Special Education Teacher Salary 
Schedule, seconded by Traci Skinner. The motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION 

    
I. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

There were no additional public comments. 
   
   



6 
 

J. Pending Agenda Items  
 1. School Resource Officer (SRO) Report  
    
 Wesley Cagle stated his support in hiring an additional music teacher for the District based 

on public comments regarding Proposition 28, Arts and Music in Schools Funding. Casey 
Raboy concurred. Lois Yount said Proposition 28 funding may be reduced in the 
Governor's final budget. She will bring information back to the Board in June. 

 

    
 Annette Kunze mentioned several legislative bills being heard in the Education 

committees.  
 
1) AB 2226 and SB 1056 - relate to mandatory kindergarten. She mentioned that there 
was a lot of discussion at the Capitol regarding this topic and that bills are being heard in 
both houses. 
 
2) AB 1825 - relating to public library materials. It's similar to last year's AB 1078 but 
relates to public libraries, not school libraries, as it was heard in the education committee. 
So, if anyone has strong feelings about that topic, they may want to share those feelings 
and/or track the status of this bill. 
 
3) SB 1283 - relating to social media in schools. The bill currently defines social media very 
broadly, and this was discussed in the committee. 
 
4) SB 1094 - relating to civic engagement and civics education. It would require 
introduction once in elementary and at the middle school levels (currently, it is high 
school). Dave Gordon, Sacramento County Superintendent of Schools, spoke to the 
committee in favor of this bill.   
 
Annette Kunze mentioned that, related to this topic, she was contacted by the adult 
mentor for the Galt Youth Commission, who stated they are in need of candidates to 
apply. Annette mentioned her two sons were on this commission, and it was a great 
opportunity to gain leadership experience and help the Galt community. May be a good 
opportunity for 8th graders leaving for high school. They have the information regarding 
the application posted on the City's Instagram account. 
 
Ms. Kunze thanked Marengo Ranch for their participation in her daughter’s senior project 
for the National Honor Society. It meant a lot to the former students to be able to return 
to Marengo Ranch. 

 

    
K. Adjournment 8:33 pm.  
    
    
    

 
_____________________________________________ 

Katherine Harper, Clerk 
 
 

______________________ 
Date 



Recommend approval of the following:

Resignations/Retirees

Name Position Effective Date Site

Leveroni, Tracey Teacher 7/12/2024 McCaffrey Middle

McGranahan, Jenne Teacher 6/7/24 Marengo Ranch

Port, Elizabeth Expanded Learning Instructional
Assistant

6/7/24 Lake Canyon

Prieto-Chase, Lydia Food & Nutrition Assistant 1 4/18/24 Vernon E. Greer

Seamons, Jackie (Retirement, 21
Years)

Food & Nutrition Assistant 2 6/7/24 Valley Oaks

Shelley, Stella Payroll Technician 6/7/24 District Office

Villanueva, Emily Yard Supervisor 5/7/24 McCaffrey Middle

Leave of Absence Requests

Name Position Effective Date Site
Chavez, Christina Yard Supervisor 5/8/24 McCaffrey Middle

Woods, Michelle Teacher 8/5/24 Lake Canyon

New Hires/Reclassifications/Status Changes

Name Position Site

Cabrera, Yadira Classified Substitute N/A

Gomez, Oralia Classified Substitute N/A

Gonzalez, Alberto Classified Substitute N/A

Gonzalez, Casandra (Status
Change)

Bilingual Instructional Assistant Vernon E. Greer

Lopez, Irma Classified Substitute N/A

Mestayer, Lisa Classified Substitute N/A

Meza, Miriam Bilingual Office Assistant Vernon E. Greer

Miranda, Amanda Short Term Instructional Assistant, Special Education Vernon E. Greer

Nelson, Olivia Certificated Substitute N/A

GJUESD Board Meeting May 15, 2024



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board Meeting: May 15, 2024 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

Donations 

 
 
 
Fairsite Elementary 

 Athena and Don Buchanan donated $100.00 to Mrs. Shin’s classroom 
 Alexis Torres donated $500.00 to Ms. Puentes’ and Ms. Arana’s classrooms 
 Westside Spreading, LLC donated books valued at $322.37     

 
 
Galt Horse Assisted Learning & Enrichment Program (GALEP) 

 Jan Luiz donated $100.00 towards the Galt Horse Assisted Learning and Enrichment 
Program 

 
 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board Meeting: May 15, 2024 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

Non Public Schools/Agencies Contract 

 
 
 

f. Master Contract for Non Public Schools and Agencies Providing services to students 
whose needs cannot be met in the district’s programs. 

 
15.  Procare Therapy Non-Public, Non-Sectarian School/Agency Services Contract 

 
 





























































































 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board Meeting: May 15, 2024 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

Disposal of Surplus Property 

 
 
 

g. Disposal of Surplus Property – Cafeteria Tables 
 

Surplus property is considered disposable if it becomes unsatisfactory or not 
suitable for use. Surplus property may be donated or sold. There shall be no sale 
until notice has been given by posting in at least three public places in the district for 
not less than two weeks, or by publication for at least once a week for a period of 
not less than two weeks in a newspaper published in the district and having a 
general circulation there. 
 

 Fairsite Elementary – 3 
 River Oaks Elementary – 4 
 Valley Oaks Elementary – 5 
 Marengo Ranch Elementary – 3 
 Lake Canyon Elementary – 5 
 McCaffrey Middle School - 6 

 
 



GALT JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

INVENTORY DISPOSITION 
 

 
This form is to be filled out when any item on school inventory is being disposed.  Please attach the 
inventory sticker to the form if you are removing the equipment at the site, OR send the form in with 
the equipment that you have delivered to the District Office for removal.  Please be sure it is filled out 
completely except for cost and date acquired.  The Principal must sign the form before sending to the 
District Office.  If the equipment was stolen, a police report should be attached also.  Thank you. 
 
FS – VO – LC – MMS – MRE – RO   _____________________4/25/24_______________ 
      School        Date 
 
 

Inventory 
Number 

 
Description 

 
Reason for Disposition 

Lost or 
Stolen? 

Date 
Purchased 

(District Office) 

Original 
Cost 

(District Office) 

N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
 
 
Disposition Approved:      Any items which are lost or stolen 
         will require School Board approval. 
________________________________________ 
Principal Signature 
 
________________________________________  _____________________________ 
District Superintendent      Date of Board Action 

Revised 10-03-00 



GALT JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

INVENTORY DISPOSITION 
 

 
This form is to be filled out when any item on school inventory is being disposed.  Please attach the 
inventory sticker to the form if you are removing the equipment at the site, OR send the form in with 
the equipment that you have delivered to the District Office for removal.  Please be sure it is filled out 
completely except for cost and date acquired.  The Principal must sign the form before sending to the 
District Office.  If the equipment was stolen, a police report should be attached also.  Thank you. 
 
FS – VO – LC – MMS – MRE – RO   _____________________4/25/24_______________ 
      School        Date 
 
 

Inventory 
Number 

 
Description 

 
Reason for Disposition 

Lost or 
Stolen? 

Date 
Purchased 

(District Office) 

Original 
Cost 

(District Office) 

N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
N/A Rectangular Café Table End of Life  1999 or older  
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
 
 
Disposition Approved:      Any items which are lost or stolen 
         will require School Board approval. 
________________________________________ 
Principal Signature 
 
________________________________________  _____________________________ 
District Superintendent      Date of Board Action 

Revised 10-03-00 



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board Meeting: May 15, 2024 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

Disposal of Surplus Property 

 
 
 

h. Disposal of Surplus Property – John Deere Tractor Mowers 
 

Surplus property is considered disposable if it becomes unsatisfactory or not 
suitable for use. Surplus property may be donated or sold. There shall be no sale 
until notice has been given by posting in at least three public places in the district for 
not less than two weeks, or by publication for at least once a week for a period of 
not less than two weeks in a newspaper published in the district and having a 
general circulation there. 
 

 ’15 John Deere Z930M Ride On Tractor Mower 
 ’04 John Deere 757 ZTRK 50” Ride On Tractor Mower 

 
 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:    May 15, 2024 Agenda Item:  232.499 
Consent Calendar (continued)- Items 
Removed For Later Consideration 
 

Presenter:         Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 
The Board will have the opportunity to address any items that are moved from the consent 
calendar. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA95632209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax
Board Meeting Agenda Item Information

Meeting Date: May 15, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.500
Board Consideration of Approval of Hancock 
Park & DeLong School Facility Consulting 
Proposal for School Facilities Grant and 
Consulting Services

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX
Information Item:

Since 2018, the District has partnered with Williams & Associates, LLC for school facility grant 
services. With support from these professional services, the District has received $10,783,546 in 
reimbursement funds through the State School Facility Program over the last four years. In addition, 
the District has another application that is on the “Acknowledged List” for $1,500,000. This 
application could be funded with the sale of future State facility bonds.  

Williams & Associates, LLC will no longer provide professional services to school districts. However, 
the district still needs these services for State reporting and auditing purposes and to submit future 
applications through the Office of Public School Construction Services. Therefore, the district
recommends a partnership with Hancock Park & DeLong Inc. They have the background and 
experience needed to continue our work to meet State auditing requirements and submit future 
applications for additional State facility funding.  

Attachments:
Proposal for Services
Consulting Agreement  

Board approval is recommended.  

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10

We begin with the end in mind

We seek to understand the project scope

We determine eligibility for the various grant programs and re-examine the past 

We create a funding and application plan, then apply for funding where and 
when able 

Step
1

Step
2

Step
3

Step
4



11

Step
5

Step
6

We keep the lines of communication open through constant contact

We know it’s not just about getting the money; we look to the future



12

                 



13



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
Facilities Consulting Agreement 

Page 1 of 3 

FACILITIES CONSULTING AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement is entered into on May 16, 2024, by and between the Galt Joint Union Elementary 
School District (“Client”) and Hancock Park & DeLong, Inc. (“Contractor”) for special services pertaining 
to the School Facility Program (SFP) administered by the State Allocation Board and Office of Public 
School Construction.  

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, Client is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government Code to contract with and 
employ persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in financial, economic, accounting, 
engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are trained and experienced and competent 
to perform special services required; 
 
WHEREAS, Client is in need of such special school facilities consulting services and advice, and; 
 
WHEREAS, Contractor is specially trained, experienced, and competent to perform the special services 
required by the Client, and is willing and able to perform services desired by Client; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:  
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall commence on May 16, 2024, and continue through June 30, 
2025; following June 30, 2025, this Agreement shall be renewed automatically on an annual basis (“Term”) 
until Client determines no further services are needed. 
 

2. Description of Services.  Contractor agrees to provide services to Client as identified in Exhibit A, 
“School Facilities Grant and Consulting Services Proposal,” attached to this Agreement and incorporated 
by reference.  
 

3. Compensation.   
a. The total compensation to Contractor for this Agreement shall be billed at $180.00 per hour, not to 

exceed $15,000 for each fiscal year.  Services shall be billed on an hourly basis, in quarter of an 
hour increments, as documented each month. Services shall be invoiced and paid monthly and con-
tinuing each month thereafter during the Term of the Agreement. The invoice shall be paid no later 
than thirty days from the date of the invoice.  

b. Client also agrees to compensate Contractor for travel expenses associated with the performance of 
this Agreement, provided that such travel is requested and approved by Client. 
 

4. Termination.  At any time during the Term of the Agreement, either party may terminate this 
agreement, with or without cause, by giving written notice to the other party at least 30 days prior to 
the date of termination. In case of termination, Client shall be liable for all fees described under Section 
3 above, including approved travel expenses and time spent on performance of services, up to the 
termination date. 
 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
Facilities Consulting Agreement 

Page 2 of 3 

5. Modification.  This Agreement may be modified (including modification to the scope of work and/or 
compensation) by the parties through mutual written agreement. 
 
 

6. Limitation on Liability; Indemnification. 
a. IN NO EVENT SHALL CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY TO CLIENT, FOR ANY REASON ARISING OUT OF THIS 

AGREEMENT, EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF THE COMPENSATION ACTUALLY RECEIVED BY CONTRACTOR 
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INDIRECT, OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT.   

b. Each party shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other party, and all of its agents, direc-
tors, officers, and employees from and against any and all claims, liabilities, losses, damages, judg-
ments, costs, and expenses and threats thereof (collectively, “Claims”) arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement, except that a party need not defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
the other party against Claims finally determined to have arisen solely from the other party’s gross 
negligence or willful misconduct.   

c. The Client shall be responsible for reviewing and verifying all data included in documents, forms, and 
reports prepared by the Contractor on behalf of the Client.  The Client shall be responsible for meet-
ing any certification requirements and shall be responsible for consulting legal counsel as related to 
the preparation and submittal of documents, forms and reports.  The undersigned also understands 
that the Contractor cannot control the processes of the applicable Local, State, or Federal agencies in 
reviewing and approving any Client application or appeal request.  The Contractor will use its best 
efforts to assist the Client with all agencies but cannot guarantee favorable results.  
 

7. Notices to the Parties.  All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and 
delivered by reliable and common methods as follows:  
 
   To Hancock Park & DeLong, Inc.:          To Galt Joint Union Elementary School District: 

Christopher DeLong    Lois Yount 
President     Superintendent 
1722 J Street, Suite 224   1018 C Street, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95811  Galt, CA  95632 
(916) 832-1047    (209) 744-4545 x.308   
chris@hpdschools.com     lyount@galt.k12.ca.us  
    
 

8. Independent Contractor.  The parties agree that Contractor is an independent contractor. This 
Agreement shall not be construed to create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, 
joint venture, association, or any other relationship except that of independent contractor.  
 

9. Waiver.  No failure to exercise and no delay in exercising any right, remedy, or power, under this 
Agreement or by law, shall operate as a waiver of such right, remedy, or power. 
 

10. Legal Costs.  If any party to this Agreement shall take any action or proceeding to enforce this 
Agreement, the losing party shall pay to the prevailing party a reasonable sum for all fees, costs, and 
expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred in bringing such suit and/or enforcing any judgment 
granted. 
 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
Facilities Consulting Agreement 

Page 3 of 3 

11. Governing Law.  The formation, interpretation, and performance of this Agreement shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of California. 
 

12. Entire Agreement.  The terms of this Agreement are intended by the parties to be in the final 
expression of their agreement and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior or contemporane-
ous agreement. No change or waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing and executed in the same manner as this Agreement. 
 

13. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be found illegal or unenforceable, such 
term or provision shall be deemed stricken and the remaining elements of this Agreement shall remain 
in full force and effect.  
 
 

This Agreement is duly executed as of the date written above: 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Christopher DeLong 
President 
Hancock Park & DeLong, Inc. 

 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Lois Yount 
Superintendent 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
 

 
 



1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA95632209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax
Board Meeting Agenda Item Information

Meeting Date: May 15, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.501
Board Consideration of Approval of 
School Facilities Program Close-out 
Performance Audit for Valley Oaks 
Elementary School

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX
Information Item:

In the last four years, the District has received over $10 million in State School Facility Program 
Funding. Under Education Code 41024, an independent annual financial audit of School 
Facilities Program funds is mandated, aligning with the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 
1998 and related regulations. This includes adherence to grant agreements and the 2022-23 
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agency and State Compliance Reporting.

Christy White Associates has completed the Close-Out Performance Audit for Valley Oaks 
Elementary School Project No. 57/67348-00-002. No findings or recommendations were 
identified in the Close-Out Performance Audit.

Board approval is recommended.

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

























1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA95632209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax
Board Meeting Agenda Item Information

Meeting Date: May 15, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.502
Board Consideration of Approval of 
School Facilities Program Close-out 
Performance Audit for River Oaks 
Elementary School

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX
Information Item:

In the last four years, the District has received over $10 million in State School Facility Program 
Funding. Under Education Code 41024, an independent annual financial audit of School 
Facilities Program funds is mandated, aligning with the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 
1998 and related regulations. This includes adherence to grant agreements and the 2022-23 
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agency and State Compliance Reporting.

Christy White Associates has completed the Close-Out Performance Audit for River Oaks 
Elementary School Project No. 57/67348-00-003.

The audit noted a finding: The District inadvertently reported an expenditure in the wrong final 
project documentation. A payment of $123,623 to S&B James Construction Management 
Company for the Marengo Ranch School Project was reported in the final project 
documentation for the River Oaks School Project.

The District submitted the River Oaks Elementary School Project to the Office of Public School 
Construction (OPSC) for a soft review and this error in reporting was not found.

Fiscal Impact: None at this time. The District is waiting on the State Controller's Office review 
team. If there is a fiscal impact, it would not be to the General Fund.

Board approval is recommended.

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

























1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA95632209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax
Board Meeting Agenda Item Information

Meeting Date: May 15, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.503
Board Consideration of Approval of 19six
Architects' Proposal for Professional 
Architectural and Engineering Services for 
New Classroom Building at Valley Oaks 
Elementary School

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX
Information Item:

Portable classrooms 22-25 at Valley Oaks Elementary School are extremely outdated and need to 
be replaced. The District recommends contracting with 19six Architects to begin planning to 
remove these four portables and replace them with four new permanent classrooms.

Architectural scope and services are needed for design development, preparation of construction 
documents, DSA coordination and approval, bidding process and construction administration.

Estimated Schedule:

Construction Documents Complete - August 2024
DSA Approval - November 2024
Bidding Process for General Contractor - January 2025
Construction Start - February 2025
Construction Completion - August 2025

Fiscal impact for architectural services - $329,700

Estimated construction budget - $3.1 million

Funding sources - State School Facility Program Funds and Developer Fees

Board approval is recommended.

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District









•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•





Co
ns

tru
ct 

(N
) 4

-cl
rm

 bu
ild

ing
 +

/-3
,84

0 S
F

De
mo

 an
d d

isp
os

e o
f 4

 po
rta

ble
cla

ss
ro

om
 bu

ild
ing

s 2
2, 

23
, 2

4, 
25

 an
d

as
so

cia
ted

 ra
mp

s a
nd

 fo
oti

ng
s.

Re
us

e (
E)

 pa
thw

ay
s f

or
 (N

) e
lec

tric
al,

fire
 al

ar
m,

 an
d l

ow
 vo

lta
ge

.

Ne
w 

6 c
las

sro
om

Bu
ild

ing
 cu

rre
ntl

y
un

de
r c

on
str

uc
tio

n.
No

t in
 S

co
pe

22
23

24
25



1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA95632209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax
Board Meeting Agenda Item Information

Meeting Date: May 15, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.504
GJUESD Sunshine Proposal for the Fiscal 
Year 2024-25 with California School 
Employees Association (CSEA) - Public 
Notice 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item:
Information Item: XX

For the 2024-25 school year, the District plans to open negotiations with the California School 
Employees Association (CSEA) on two articles with the goal of updating the language:

1. Article X: Transfers

2. Article XI: Promotional Opportunities

Article XX Wages and Article XIX Fringe Benefits are open for negotiations annually.

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA95632209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax
Board Meeting Agenda Item Information

Meeting Date: May 15, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.505
GJUESD Sunshine Proposal for the Fiscal 
Year 2024-25 with Galt Elementary 
Faculty Association (GEFA) - Public 
Notice 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item:
Information Item: XX

For the 2024-25 school year, the District plans to open negotiations with the Galt Elementary Faculty 
Association (GEFA) on two articles with the goal of updating the language:

1. Article VII: Evaluation Procedures

2. Article XXIV: Term

Article XVIII Salary and Appendix B Fringe Benefits are open for negotiations annually.

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA95632209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax
Board Meeting Agenda Item Information

Meeting Date: May 15, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.506
Galt Elementary Faculty Association (GEFA) 
Sunshine Notice for the Fiscal Year 2024-25 
with the Galt Joint Union Elementary School 
District

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item:
Information Item: XX

The Galt Elementary Faculty Association (“GEFA”) hereby presents its initial PUBLIC NOTICE 
“sunshine” statement in order to inform the public of matters that will be negotiated between the 
GEFA and the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District.

Article V Hours– to negotiate potential changes for certificated employee work schedules.

Article XII Leaves– to negotiate potential changes to sick leave.

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA95632209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax
Board Meeting Agenda Item Information

Meeting Date: May 15, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.507
First Reading of Board Policies

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item:
Cabinet Information Item: XX

The Board will hold a first reading of the following policies:

1. BP 3516 Emergency and Disaster Preparedness Plan
2. BP 4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
3. BP 4140/4240/4340 Bargaining Units
4. BP 4157/4257/4357 Employee Safety
5. BP 4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
6. BB 9320 Meetings and Notices
7. BB 9323.2 Actions by the Board
8. BP 5144 Discipline
9. BP 6141.2 Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs
10. BP 6175 Migrant Education
11. BP 3550 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program
12. BP 3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund
13. BP3553 Free and Reduced Price Meals
14. BP 3555 Nutrition Program Compliance
15. BP 5126 Awards for Achievement
16. BP 4111/4211/4311 Recruitment and Selection

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 

First Reading: April 17, 2024 

 

1. Board Policy 3516 - Emergency and Disaster Preparedness Plan 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 323, 2023) which requires school emergency and disaster 
preparedness plans to include adaptations for students with disabilities in accordance with the federal 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act and section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

 
2. Board Policy 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action 

Policy updated to generalize the material related to the basis for disciplinary action, and reflect NEW 
COURT DECISION (Visalia Unified School District v. PERB) which held that service as a union officer 
constitutes protected activity under the Educational Employment Relations Act for purposes of 
complaints of retaliation for union activities, and that retaliation solely for engaging in protected activities 
is prohibited. Additionally, policy updated to amend the list of what may be considered disciplinary actions 
to more closely align with law, and to add new section "Compulsory Leave of Absence" for consistency 
with law and the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 

3. Board Policy 4140/4240/4340 - Bargaining Units 
Policy updated to clarify use of "employee organization," "recognized employee organization," "exclusive 
representative," and "bargaining unit". Additionally, policy updated to clarify Public Employee Relations 
Board opinions regarding when a district may restrict the wearing of union buttons, insignia, or other 
pictorial or written messages by employees, when a district may limit an employee organization's ability 
to communicate with its members, and what constitutes "reasonable restrictions" by a district. In addition, 
policy updated to remove outdated material related to COVID-19, and reflect NEW LAW (AB 243, 2023) 
which extends the Safe at Home address confidentiality protection to victims of child abduction and 
members of their households. Policy also updated for clarity, precision, organization, and consistency 
 

4. Board Policy 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety 
Policy updated to reference NEW LAW (SB 553, 2023) which requires, starting July 1, 2024, districts to 
establish, implement, and maintain at all times and in all work areas a workplace violence prevention 
plan with specified components. 

5. Board Policy 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action 
Policy updated to add that the Governing Board expects all employees to serve as positive role models 
at school and in the community for consistency with expectations for certificated staff, generalize the 
material related to the basis for disciplinary action, and reflect NEW COURT DECISION (Visalia Unified 
School District v. PERB) which held that service as a union officer constitutes protected activity under the 
Educational Employment Relations Act for purposes of complaints of retaliation for union activities, and 
that retaliation solely for engaging in protected activities is prohibited. Additionally, policy updated to 
amend the list of what may be considered disciplinary actions to more closely align with law, clarify that 
if a timely request for a hearing is submitted, a third-party hearing officer is required to conduct the 
hearing if the Board has delegated such authority, and to add new section "Compulsory Leave of 
Absence" for consistency with law and the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 

6. Board Bylaw 9320 - Meetings and Notices 
Bylaw updated to clarify that a study session, retreat, public forum, or discussion meeting of the 
Governing Board must either be held as a regular or special Board meeting. Additionally, bylaw updated 
to reflect NEW LAW (AB 557, 2023) which extended and modified the ability of a Board member to join 



a meeting by teleconference due to just cause or emergency circumstances or during a proclaimed state 
of emergency. In addition, bylaw updated to remove outdated COVID-19 related requirements. Bylaw also 
updated for clarity, precision, organization, and consistency. 

7. Board Bylaw 9323.2 - Actions by the Board 
Bylaw updated to add that the Governing Board may take action on a request by a Board member to 
participate by teleconference due to emergency circumstances if it is not on the posted agenda so long 
as there was not sufficient time to place it on the agenda. Additionally, bylaw updated to remove 
language related to the authority of the district attorney's office or an interested person to file a civil 
action asking the court to order the Board to stop or prevent a Brown Act violation and replace it with 
language requiring the district attorney's office or interested person to first present a demand to "cure 
and correct" the alleged violation and, when such occurs, for the Board to consult with legal counsel on 
if and how to respond. 

8. Board Policy 5144 - Discipline 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 291, 2023) which, beginning with the 2024-25 school year, 
prohibits a school staff member from denying a student's recess unless the student's participation poses 
an immediate threat to the physical safety of the student or one or more of the student's peers. 
Additionally, policy updated to clarify that the Governing Board may, but is not required, to review 
approved discipline rules for consistency with Board policy and state law. In addition, policy updated to 
include interventions and supports to students as a priority in determining appropriate discipline. 
 

9. Board Policy 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs 
Policy updated to reflect NEW GUIDANCE from the U.S. Department of Education regarding 
constitutionally protected prayer and religious expression in public schools and Appendix F of the 
California Department of Education's History and Social Science Framework which offers guidance and 
support for educators regarding the recognition of religious beliefs and customs. Additionally, policy 
updated to add that instruction regarding the role of religion in society be consistent with adopted 
instructional materials and state standards. In addition, policy updated to reflect U.S. Supreme Court 
decision (Kennedy v. Bremerton) which held that the employee, a football coach, did not coerce students 
to pray when the employee knelt at midfield after games to offer a quiet personal prayer, rejected the 
district's argument that any visible religious conduct by a teacher or coach amounted to impermissible 
coercion on students, and concluded that the coach was acting in a private capacity and not in the 
capacity of an employee of the district when the prayer was offered during a time when school 
employees were free to attend to personal matters. Policy also updated to reflect NEW COURT DECISION 
(Fellowship of Christian Athletes v. San Jose Unified School District) in which the Ninth Circuit U.S. Court 
of Appeals held that it would be discrimination for a district to fail to recognize a student club with 
religiously based leadership requirements upon a finding that multiple student clubs imposed certain 
requirements for membership or leadership positions—i.e., discriminated against certain students—but 
that the district only objected to the Fellowship of Christian Athletes' requirements because of the 
religious basis of the requirements. 
 

10. Board Policy 6175 - Migrant Education 
Policy updated to reference this group of highly mobile students as "students who are migratory" to align 
with language found within the Education Code and the California Department of Education's 2023-24 
federal program monitoring instrument. 
 

11. Board Policy 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 348, 2023) which (1) clarifies that districts are required to make 
available, during each school day and free of charge, one nutritionally adequate breakfast and one 
nutritionally adequate lunch to any student who requests a meal, including a student enrolled in an 
independent study program as specified, regardless of the student's eligibility for a federally funded 



free or reduced-price meal, (2) defines a "nutritionally adequate breakfast and lunch," and (3) requires 
that students be provided with adequate time to eat. Additionally, policy updated to reflect NEW LAW 
(AB 95, 2023) which clarifies that districts may sell a nutritiously adequate meal that qualifies for 
federal reimbursement to a student after a free meal has been provided. In addition, policy updated to 
reflect NEW LAW (SB 114, 2023) which establishes school food best practices such as serving freshly 
prepared onsite meals using minimally processed, locally grown, and sustainable food, giving priority to 
California-grown or produced foods, and increasing plant-based or restricted diet food options for 
students. Policy updated to reflect California Department of Food and Agriculture guidance about 
school gardens. 

 
12. Board Policy 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 348, 2023) which clarifies that (1) the establishment of a cafeteria 
fund does not preclude the district from using other funds for the purpose of purchasing school meals, 
and 
(2) districts are required to make available, during each school day and free of charge, one nutritionally 
adequate breakfast and one nutritionally adequate lunch to any student who requests a meal, including 
a student enrolled in an independent study program as specified, regardless of the student's eligibility 
for a federally funded free or reduced-price meal. Additionally, policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 
95, 2023) which clarifies that districts may sell a nutritiously adequate meal that qualifies for federal 
reimbursement to a student after a free meal has been provided and NEW LAW (SB 114, 2023) which 
establishes school food best practices such as giving priority to using California-grown or produced, 
sustainably grown, or whole or minimally processed foods, increasing plant-based or restricted diet food 
options for students, and preparing fresh meals onsite. 

 
13. Board Policy 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 348, 2023) which clarifies that districts are required to make 
available, during each school day and free of charge, one nutritionally adequate breakfast and one 
nutritionally adequate lunch to any student who requests a meal, regardless of the student's eligibility 
for a federally funded free or reduced-price meal, and NEW LAW (AB 95, 2023) which clarifies that 
districts may sell a nutritiously adequate meal that qualifies for federal reimbursement to a student after 
a free meal has been provided. Additionally, policy updated to clarify that meals served under the school 
nutrition program meet district-adopted guidelines, in addition to state and federal nutrition standards. 
In addition, policy updated to more closely align with code language. 

 
14. Board Policy 3555 – Nutrition Program Compliance 

Policy is required for any district whose child nutrition programs (i.e., National School Lunch Program, 
School Breakfast Program, Special Milk Program, and/or other child nutrition program) receive state or 
federal funding. During the California Department of Education 
S (CDE) Administrative Review of the district’s child nutrition programs, CDE will review whether the 
district has a written procedure that comples with requirements pertaining to civil rights and 
nondiscrimination. 

15. Board Policy 5126 - Awards for Achievement 
Policy updated to add that a budget be established for the purpose of student awards, and that no fee or 
other cost be charged to any student in relation to any requirements in qualifying for or receiving any 
district achievement awards. Additionally, policy updated to separate out the State Seal of Biliteracy 
material from district established awards for biliteracy, and to clarify that the Governing Board may 
prohibit the district committee which administers the district's scholarship and loan fund from accepting 
any donation under conditions it finds incompatible with the fund's intents and purposes as specified in 
Board Policy 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Requests. 
 



16. Board Policy 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection 
Policy updated to reflect NEW GUIDANCE from the California Department of Education and the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialling related to the benefit to students when district staff reflects the 
racial, ethnic, linguistic and cultural diversity of the district, and when the district's recruitment and 
selection process seeks to establish and maintain a diverse staff. Additionally, policy updated to include 
that the pay scale for an open position be included in the job posting. In addition, policy updated to 
include that discrimination against a person in hiring based on the person's use of cannabis off the job 
and away from the workplace is prohibited, and reflect NEW LAW (SB 700, 2023) which prohibits the 
district from requesting information from an applicant related to the applicant's prior use of cannabis, 
apart from the person's criminal history, unless the district is otherwise legally permitted to consider or 
inquire about that information, In addition, policy updated to provide that the district retains the right 
to maintain drug-free schools and to prohibit employees from possessing, being impaired by, or using 
cannabis while on the job. Policy also updated to include that, in addition to Governing Board approval 
and district needs, the provision of incentives to recruit teachers be in accordance with any applicable 
collective bargaining agreement. 

 
 

 
 
 

 



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District









Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District









Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District















Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District













Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District







Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District





Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District


